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Mr. James Wright, Public Health Sanitarian, District No. 4 Division of 
Health and I visited the Onalaska dUlllp on Tuesdays March 25, 1969. The 
dump is located in the southwest part of the city i:i.i a marsh area just 
e•st of the channel of the Black River a short distance above its juncture 
with the Miesissippi River. Although this d11r11p is not located on the 
river bank, it is definitely in the floodplain. It has been reported 
that this area has been inundated during periods of high water in the 
Black and Miasissippi Rivera. 

At the time of this visit there was evidence of uncontrolled dumping of 
refuse in the marsh area, as shown on the enclosed picture. It was also 
noted that dikes were being constructed in this area for protection against 
flooding but the dikes were located on the landward side of the dW11p, thus 
•£fording no protection for the dump against flooding. 

A discussion of the dump location and the possibility of lts flooding 
was held via telephone with Mr. Jack Zirbes, Onalaska Git.y Engineer on 
Monday morning, March 31, 1969. This was a three way ,":onveraation between 
Mr. Zirbes, Floyd Stautz, Regional Director, Madison, and myself. Measures 
for the protection of the dump against flooding were requested at this 
time (see attached letter·). 
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444 West Main Street 
Region Ho. l Office 

Mr • Jack Zirbes 
City Engineer 
Onalaska, Wiecondn 

Oear Mr. Zirbes: 

Division of Environmental Protection 

'nlia will confirm our telephone converaat1on of !t:lnday, ?-'.arch :H, 1969 
between you, Mr. Floyd Stautz, Regional Director, !>i vi.sion of l!:nviron­
mental Protection, and the writ~r. The location and protection againat 
flooding of the 1:ioaleaka refuse dump wa~ discussed at that time. 

A vbit was made to the Onalaska d,-ap by Mr. Jamee Wright, Public Health 
Sanitarian, District lio. 4, Division of Health and the writer on Tuesday, 
March 25, 1969. The dt.Dp is located in the southwest part of the City 
gf Onalaska 1.n the SEt 'Jt Section 6, '!'16~, R.7W. Thh area east of the 
channel of the Black River ta low marah land and ii in the floodplain of 
the Black ll1. ver. 

At the time of this vhit refuse was bein~ deposited on the gr·ound in an 
uncontrolled manner. Dikea were being constructed in the area of the 
dump for protectioo against the expected flooding of tbe Mlssisat.ppi and 
Black Rivers. It appeared that these d!k.,s were 80 located as to not 
include the duaip in. the area to be pr•.>tected frotF flood watera. Thus, 
in the event that this are•. is flo,r:,ded, refuse mate,:-ial would be carried 
into the stream by the £loo~ waters. 

It was recommended in our telephone conversat1vn that the dump area 
be completely cov'!red with at least two feet of compacted soil or that 
the area of the durap be protected frO!lll flooding by the conatruction of 
earth dikes of sufficient height•• to pr•vent the flood waters from 
reaching the dwop. tt h expected that these precauti ... ons will be com­
pleted prior to the tivie of the flood crest in this area. 
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'l'he recently adopted lilolid waste disposal standards have not yet been 
received from the printera. However, we are s ubllli t ting with tbi s letter 
• copy of the December 30. 1968 draft which was modified somewhat by th~ 
final adopted stand~rds. This should be a guide to you until we can send 
you the actual adopted Bt&ndard ... 

If there are an:,, questions or if we can be of assistance to you in any 
way, please contact tbia office. 

Very truly yours~ 

Harry A. Denzien 
Regional Sanitarian 

Approviad tbia 31st, day of karch, 19611 

f"loyd F. Stautz, F, "i;. 

R,egional Director 

D:S:k 
cc to: 
Division of Environmental rrctection, A.t.tn., Avery wells 
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State of Wisconsin \ D E p A R T M E N T o F H E A L T H A N D s o C I A L S E R V I C E S 

March 14, 1969 

Mr. Floyd Stautz, P.E. 
Regional Director 
Division of Environn1ental Protection 
444 W. Main Street 
Madison, Wisconsin 

Dear Mr. Stautz: 

DIVISION OF HEALTH 
DISTRICT 4 OFFICE 

104 STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
250 MORMON COULEE ROAD 
LA CROSSE, W I S CONSIN 54601 

PHONE (60 8 ) 784·8289 

A concerned Onalaska citizen called into this office in connection 
with the Onalaska dump. The dump in (,tuestion is located in a flood 
plain near the Black River . Actually, you and I visited this dump 
during the high water period of 1967. The concern of the citizen 
was that garQage would again be carried downstream along with the 
expected flood waters this spring • . 
I .t,old the above complainant that I would relay his message to you 
in that we no lortger have the solid waste program. I also explained 
that pollution of surface waters should be dealt wi t h through your 
division. 

Jai"ll.es G. Wright 
Public Health Sanitarian 

JGW:vmd 

cc: Bureau of Environmental Health 




